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          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Good morning,

          3  everyone. And welcome to today's Civil Service and

          4  Labor Committee hearing.

          5                 My name is Joe Addabbo, I chair the

          6  Committee. I'd just like to welcome my colleagues

          7  who are with me today. To my far right, Council

          8  Member Seabrook, a member of the Committee, and also

          9  a member of the Committee, Council Member

         10  Mark-Viverito. Thank you both for being here today.

         11                 I'd like to thank our Policy Analyst,

         12  Joan Povolny, for helping us with this hearing.

         13  Also, my Legislative Aid, Steve Adenesio, and to my

         14  right here, Counsel to the Committee, Harold Gates.

         15                 Today's Committee meeting will be

         16  heard in two parts. The first oversight hearing and

         17  vote to file the preconsidered Intro. 371, which

         18  relates to titles and procedures of the Office of

         19  Chief Medical Examiner.

         20                 Part two involves a vote on Intro.

         21  350-A, which transfers the remaining approximately

         22  75 employees of the Department of Transportation

         23  Parking Control Unit to the NYPD, an oversight

         24  hearing on that intro, Intro. 350-A, was held on

         25  June 22nd, 2006.
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          2                 But, first, Intro. 371. Intro. 371

          3  would eliminate obsolete employment titles such

          4  Associate Medical Examiner, Assistant Medical

          5  Examiners and Junior Medical Examiners, in an effort

          6  to reflect more accurate current titles.

          7                 Intro. 371 would also add Lay medical

          8  investigators to the list of people authorized to

          9  take charge of a dead body and investigate the

         10  essential facts of a death.

         11                 Lay investigators are either

         12  physician assistants or nurse practitioners duly

         13  licensed to practice in the State of New York.

         14                 It is the intention of Intro. 371,

         15  that the use of lay medical investigators, along

         16  with medical investigators and medical examiners,

         17  will ensure a timely and complete investigation into

         18  the cause of death.

         19                 Still ultimately it will be either

         20  the Chief Medical Examiner, Deputy Chief Medical

         21  Examiner, Medical Examiner or Medical Investigator

         22  who will certify the cause of death and only the

         23  Chief Medical Examiner, Deputy Chief Medical

         24  Examiner, or Medical Examiner can decide whether an

         25  autopsy needs to be performed.
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          2                 Again, we are having our first

          3  oversight hearing on this today and a vote. A little

          4  unusual, but given the time circumstances that we

          5  are faced with in this budgetary time period, and as

          6  well as in the legislative process, I appreciate my

          7  colleagues being here on such short notice.

          8                 Our first witness for today's hearing

          9  is Commissioner James Hanley, the Office of Labor

         10  Relations.

         11                 Commissioner, always a pleasure to

         12  have you in front of us, and thank you for your time

         13  and testimony. Thank you very much.

         14                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Good morning. My

         15  name is James F. Hanley, and I am Commissioner of

         16  the Office of Labor Relations. I am here today to

         17  testify in favor of the Council's adoption of the

         18  Pre-considered Intro., which concerns titles and

         19  procedures in the City's Office of the Chief Medical

         20  Examiner (OCME). In general, this bill would ensure

         21  that the Administrative Code fully conforms to the

         22  modern practice of OCME in relation to the

         23  investigations and autopsies that OCME performs

         24  under the Charter and Administrative Code. The bill

         25  reflects the terms of a memorandum of understanding
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          2  entered into between the Doctors Council and the

          3  City, and, in accordance with that agreement, the

          4  Doctors Council has agreed to support and endorse

          5  the bill.

          6                 Most important, the bill ensures that

          7  lay medical investigators may take charge of bodies

          8  and investigate the essential facts concerning

          9  circumstances of death. Lay medical investigators

         10  are either physician assistants or nurse

         11  practitioners duly licensed to practice in New York.

         12  Their use, in addition to that of medical examiners

         13  and medical investigators, assures timely and

         14  complete investigations at times when expedited

         15  action by the OCME can be important. A related

         16  change permits the person investigating to record

         17  the facts of the investigation at a later time as

         18  well as at the scene. Similarly, the records of

         19  autopsies could be prepared after the completion of

         20  the autopsies themselves under the bill.

         21                 Another change would remove the

         22  requirement that two medical examiners must be

         23  present during an autopsy where there is reason to

         24  suspect homicide; in 1997, section 17-203 of the

         25  Administrative Code was amended to eliminate a
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          2  similar requirement applicable to circumstances

          3  other than cremation.

          4                 With modern technology, it is

          5  possible to preserve information and evidence

          6  without imposing this requirement.

          7                 Further, the bill ensures that the

          8  descriptions of the titles and the roles of various

          9  employees of OCME in relation to investigations and

         10  autopsies are accurately set forth in the Charter

         11  and the Administrative Code.

         12                 In short, this bill, which is

         13  consistent with a collectively bargained

         14  understanding, would codify a modern and efficient

         15  framework for operations at the OCME, and the

         16  Administration urges its favorable consideration by

         17  the Committee.

         18                 I might also add that the president

         19  of this union, the Doctors Council Union, is Dr.

         20  Barry Leibowitz. He's been the president of that

         21  union, to my knowledge, for certainly 20 years, and

         22  I have negotiated contracts with him from that

         23  period of time.

         24                 He did ask me to represent, make a

         25  representation on his behalf, that since this was --
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          2  pieces of it were negotiated, and it was the subject

          3  of some negotiations, he is fully in support of this

          4  bill.

          5                 And I'll certainly do what I can to

          6  try to track him down today, as well, and I'll ask

          7  him to call you, as well.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Commissioner, I

          9  do appreciate that. And, I, of course, appreciate

         10  your testimony.

         11                 We have a couple of questions. Let me

         12  welcome Council Member Mike Nelson, a member of the

         13  Committee here today. Thank you very much.

         14                 Before I get to questions, possible

         15  questions from my colleagues, do you anticipate any

         16  problems with this change, using lay medical

         17  examiners, or any opposition to this once it's

         18  enacted and implemented?

         19                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: None whatsoever.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: None.

         21                 Is there any loss of jobs at all with

         22  this change? Any loss of jobs?

         23                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: There will be no

         24  loss of jobs as a result of this.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Any creation of
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          2  any new jobs?

          3                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Not at this

          4  point.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Any cost to the

          6  City? Any financial impact on the City?

          7                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: There is no

          8  additional cost to the City.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Any beneficial

         10  financial impact?

         11                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: It will

         12  streamline the whole process, yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Therefore saving

         14  a couple dollars down the road maybe?

         15                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Hopefully. It

         16  would certainly make for a more efficient operation,

         17  and hopefully save some money.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Any change in

         19  job status, again, as we incorporate these lay

         20  medical examiners? Any change in job status for

         21  anyone?

         22                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: No.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: No.

         24                 Colleagues, any questions at this

         25  point?
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          2                 A couple more questions I have.

          3                 I found interesting in the intro that

          4  no longer is the requirement for writing down facts

          5  when you have a cause of death, that basically they

          6  may be recorded in some way later on.

          7                 Can you just explain that, there may

          8  not be any more writing down of facts?

          9                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: They speak, when

         10  they're performing what they perform, and they'll

         11  speak out loud, and it's picked up on a tape

         12  recording and then it's recorded later on.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And that's at

         14  the scene?

         15                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I also

         17  understand obviously photographs also do tell some

         18  type of story.

         19                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Absolutely.

         20  Photographs are used as well.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Do we feel that

         22  because of modern technology, whether it be

         23  recordings or photographs or what have you, that now

         24  we feel comfortable with an Intro. Like 371, we

         25  don't need as many people involved in this
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          2  situation, would modern technology have something to

          3  do with that?

          4                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Technology has a

          5  great deal to do with it, yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: How quick can we

          7  turn around Intro. 371? How quick can we administer,

          8  you know, again, the incorporation of lay medical

          9  examiner doing this job?

         10                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Immediately.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Immediately?

         12                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Upon the Mayor's

         14  signature?

         15                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Sure.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: The

         17  qualifications for a lay medical examiner, they are

         18  licensed?

         19                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Licensed by the

         20  State of New York.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: New York State?

         22  So, we should have no problem, or again concern,

         23  about their qualifications to do this job where

         24  normally it would be done by a physician?

         25                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: No concerns
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          2  whatsoever.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Any other

          4  questions for my colleagues?

          5                 Commissioner, thank you very much.

          6                 COMMISSIONER HANLEY: Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I appreciate

          9  your time and testimony today.

         10                 Part two for today's hearing, that

         11  we'll have a vote on as well, is Intro. 350-A, which

         12  transfers the remaining approximately 75 Department

         13  of Transportation Parking Control Unit personnel to

         14  the NYPD.

         15                 In 1996, a local law transferred

         16  these employees from the DOT to the NYPD, what we

         17  are doing today is transferring the remaining again

         18  approximately 75.

         19                 Intro. 350-A would create one

         20  enforcement entity, which would be the NYPD, for New

         21  York City traffic rules and regulations, New York

         22  State vehicle and traffic laws, and on-street

         23  violations.

         24                 This one we had an oversight hearing

         25  on on I believe June 22nd, so my colleagues should
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          2  be familiar with this. We are going to do a vote

          3  both on Intro. 371, and Intro. 350-A. Again, I do

          4  apologize to my colleagues for the advanced notice

          5  on Intro. 371, but again, I do appreciate their time

          6  here today and their vote.

          7                 Instead of 371, it's preconsidered,

          8  voting to file it, correct?

          9                 First the vote on 350-A. Then the

         10  second vote to file Intro. 371.

         11                 Any questions from my colleagues on

         12  the three votes? Basically on two matters, three

         13  votes.

         14                 Okay, at this point I would like to

         15  have the roll call. The first one will be 350-A.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Introduction 350-A.

         17  Council Member Addabbo.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Nelson.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Seabrook.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Mark-Viverito.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of four in
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          2  the affirmative, zero in the negative, no

          3  abstentions, proposed Introduction 350-A is adopted.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: The second we'll

          5  do to file Intro. 371.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

          7  Addabbo.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Nelson.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Seabrook.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Mark-Viverito.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of four in

         16  the affirmative, zero in the negative, no

         17  abstentions, Intro. 371 is filed.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Next we will

         19  vote on the preconsidered Intro.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Preconsidered

         21  Introduction. Council Member Addabbo.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Nelson.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Seabrook.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Yes, Mr.

          3  Chair, may I explain my vote?

          4                 Yes, I'd like to be included on all

          5  of the items that you're voting on today, if that

          6  could be possible. And I vote aye on all.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Mark-Viverito.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of four in

         10  the affirmative, zero in the negative, no

         11  abstentions, Preconsidered Introduction is adopted.

         12                 Council Members, please sign the

         13  Committee reports. Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Once again,

         15  colleagues, I want to thank you for being here on

         16  such short notice, and for these important pieces of

         17  legislation. This will adjourn the Committee of

         18  Civil Service and Labor.

         19                 Thank you very much, everyone. Have a

         20  great day.

         21                 (Hearing concluded at 12:30 p.m.)

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: At this point I

         23  would like to leave the record open for a vote for

         24  future Council members to come. Thank you very much.

         25  For a period of 15 minutes.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Intro. 371 to file,

          3  Council Member Gennaro.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: I vote aye.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: The vote on Intro. 371

          6  to file stands at five in the affirmative, zero in

          7  the negative and no abstentions.

          8                 On the adoption of introduction,

          9  proposed Introduction 350-A and Preconsidered

         10  Introduction.

         11                 Council Member Gennaro.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: I vote aye.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: The final vote on the

         14  Committee on Civil Service and Labor now stands at

         15  five in the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         16  abstentions.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: With no

         18  other business to be conducted by this Committee,

         19  this hearing is adjourned.

         20                 (Hearing concluded at 12:30 p.m.)
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